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Remembering our Honorary Presidents 
 
Heinz Skyte 
Heinz Skyte passed away on 1 January 2020, only weeks before his 100th birthday, leaving behind a huge legacy for the 
Leeds Jewish Community.  From difficult beginnings fleeing the Nazis in 1939, he dedicated his life to the welfare of others 
in his adopted new home of Leeds. 
 

 
 
Heinz volunteered for war work and worked in engineering before becoming involved with the Leeds Jewish Community.  
He became the first Secretary of Leeds Jewish Welfare Board (then known as the Leeds Jewish Board of Guardians) in 1951 
and CEO of Leeds Jewish Housing Association in 1953.  He was instrumental in developing a blueprint for the welfare and 
housing services in Leeds that remains the envy of other larger Jewish Communities.  Heinz was awarded an MBE for his 
dedication to community work in 1976. 
 
Heinz retired from his role with LJWB in 1985 but remained in frequent contact often visiting us from his flat in Skyte House 
for lunch in the MAZCC and to meet with his colleagues and friends in the Holocaust Survivors Friendship Association.  
 
 
Arnold Reuben 
One of LJWB’s long-serving Presidents, Arnold Reuben, died in October 2019.  Arnold took over the Presidency of LJWB 
from Arnold Ziff in 1986 and the impact of his leadership, insights and legacy remains today. During his ten years as 
President, he steered LJWB towards a new model of care and support. As a result of his guidance, LJWB developed three 
kosher houses for adults with learning disabilities, and our domiciliary care service, Moorcare, which today not only delivers 
high quality care and support but contributes to the local economy by providing employment for 90 people. Arnold also 
provided an immense and lasting contribution through his Chairmanship of the Variety Show Committee, which was 
recognised by Her Majesty the Queen in 1994 in her conferment of his OBE.  
 
After Arnold stepped down from his Presidency, he continued to support LJWB through his Directorship of Leeds Jewish 
Welfare Enterprises which included the ‘Wellfair shop’ and our outsourced catering function. Arnold’s ability to ensure 
services were developed for our community in a time of considerable social change has made a lasting impact on all at 
LJWB. 
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Chair’s Report 
 
When my colleagues and I sat down to write the 2019/20 Trustee report our thoughts like everyone else in the country are 
dominated by the devastating effect Covid-19 has had on our community, our lives and the services we provide since 
lockdown at the end of March 2020.  
 
This report covers the work we did until the 31st March 2020 and highlights the continued dedication, passion, and drive of 
our professional and volunteer teams to provide innovate, caring and cost-effective services.  Year on year we continue to 
provide more services to more people in our community.  Footfall has increased to the MAZCC with another 500 more visits 
recorded each month until the end of March 2020, we are now able to provide transport to help people access our support 
and our registered care services continue to be rated as ‘Good’ by CQC.  
 
In the past 142 years, LJWB has taken pride in being able to meet the needs of our community and despite all the challenges 
we are currently facing we are more determined than ever to provide for our community.  We have done this by keeping 
the community at the heart of all our decision making… none more so in recent months.  The solid foundation we built has 
meant that we rapidly change our service delivery model when lock down took hold to provide our services on line, deliver 
hot meals and make sure that our customers and clients had what they need.   
 
I would like to thank our professional teams who responded so quickly to the challenges they faced.  I have seen for myself 
their overwhelming drive and resilience to make sure services could continue, their resourcefulness in ensuring that all staff 
and volunteers had PPE, our buildings are Covid safe and that they were supported by their line-managers to be flexible 
and adapt to the often daily changes in client need, training requirements not least government guidance and legislation.  
  
Our volunteer team, including all our Trustees and committee members diligently rose to meet new requirements.  
Delivering hot meals, providing online support and assistance, shopping for others not to mention the weekly Board 
meetings to ensure that we led and governed the organisation during uncertain times.  
 
LJWB is a unique resource in Leeds and indeed the UK.  The continued support from our generous donors, funders and 
sponsors means that we can keep our doors open physically or virtually should the need arise today, tomorrow and for as 
long as we are needed.  
 
  
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………….. 
Russell Manning 
Chairperson  
 
Date:    02 November 2020 

Russell Manning (Nov 9, 2020 12:08 GMT)

https://eu1.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAhlp_NH2TyVlQYz7aoAn7SY8PnfhD_TTi
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The Trustees present their annual report together with the audited financial statements of the company for the year ending 
31 March 2020. The Annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees' report and a directors' report under company 
law. The Trustees confirm that the Annual report and financial statements of the charitable company comply with the 
current statutory requirements, the requirements of the charitable company's governing document and the provisions of 
the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) (effective October 2019).  
 
 
LJWB Purpose 
  
LJWB’s purpose remains that of ‘care and support services to those in need of assistance by reason of poverty, hardship, 
distress, infirmity or old age in Leeds, Yorkshire and district, and to relieve and improve the social and physical conditions 
of the Jewish population in the area of benefit’. 
 

Our Vision  
Positively changing lives  
 
Our Mission  
Providing relevant and responsive care, support and activities for all ages in our locality. 
 
Jewish values are central to how we have always operated – and will continue to be so. Respecting others, being 
compassionate and caring, acting with honesty and integrity and setting a positive example for others is crucial 
when carrying out our charity work. We want to do more and have recently revised our values to focus on four 
key areas in the next three years. They are: 
 
 Open - Reaching out and providing support to our locality. 
 
Transformative - We recognise the need to continually be transforming what we do to meet the changing needs 
of our community, becoming more effective and efficient and delivering high-quality services.  
 
Needs Led - Working in close harmony with our locality and service users to understand. 
 
Caring - Caring for ourselves, others and the environment. We want to be here in another 140 years.  

 
Working with our community 
 
Leeds Jewish Welfare Board has been supporting the community for over 140 years and although we have changed 
significantly over this time our core vision remains the same - supporting the ever-changing needs of our community and 
helping people to live better lives.  
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Update on 2019/20 targets  
 
In our annual report of 2018/19, we highlighted key areas we wanted to develop in 2019/20.   
 

We said we would: - We did…  
Future proof our services  

 Updating our risk management plans in 
the light of Brexit 

 Produce a three-year financial strategy 
 Learn more about our local partner’s 

development plans and how we can work 
in collaboration in the future  

 We have reviewed our risk management 
plans and these are presented to the 
Board of Trustees cyclically. We have also 
produced and reported to LCC our Brexit 
plan and have produced Business 
Continuity Plans for our services.  Latterly 
these now include our Covid-19 plans. 

 We have critically reviewed our 
Community Support & Engagement 
delivery, implementing structures to 
enable flexible and impactful services. We 
have developed a Fundraising & HR 
Strategy which will inform the continuing 
development of the financial strategy. 

 LJWB has developed stronger working 
relationships with a number of other 
Jewish organisations including LJRC.  
Collaborative work has commenced on a 
‘Making Menches’ project. We have 
continued to support Donisthorpe Hall 
and have provided help and support 
including mentoring, governance, 
volunteering, ad hoc administrative, HR 
and operational guidance. 
 

Governance review 
 We will review our governance and 

succession planning arrangements  

 A new Governance Officer has been 
appointed. Governance recruitment 
processes have been updated. Succession 
planning arrangements will be reviewed 
during 2020/21. 
 

User Engagement  
 Development and implement a User 

engagement strategy to help us 
understand our customers better 

 

 Service User Strategy developed. All 
managers required to implement actions 
and QA team had commenced supporting 
this as part of service improvement 
support prior to lockdown.  
 



 
 

 
LEEDS JEWISH WELFARE BOARD 
(A company limited by guarantee) 
  
 
 

TRUSTEES REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 

 

Page 5 
 

We said we would: - We did…  
Facilities Management  

 Development of a forward-thinking 
maintenance plan  

 Tender our IT Management service  

 A full online Maintenance Management 
System (Flix) has been sourced and 
implemented at the MAZCC and 
continues to be rolled out across 
registered care.  

 IT full scoping resulted in breaking down 
services between comms, equipment and 
support. Computer equipment tender has 
been successfully completed; comms has 
been awarded with the support services 
tender to be run 2020-21. 
 

Financial  
 Review our financial standing instructions  
 Improve understanding of budget 

management across all services  
 Adopt a ‘best value’ procurement 

approach  
 Ensure that all services procured over 

£10,000 have formal contracts  

 Financial regulations have been 
developed and implemented across the 
organisation.  

 Budget holders monitor budgets and 
variances to actual results monthly. 
Budgets are set in line with operational 
plans. 

 We have developed a procurement 
strategy based on ‘best value’.   

 An in-house cross service procurement 
group led by our Facilities and Contracts 
Manager has been convened to review, 
plan and award contracts for supplies and 
services.   In the first year this group has 
formalised a preferred supplier criterion 
and list, with a strong focus on supporting 
community relationships and three major 
tenders have been successfully 
completed.  
 

Service Review 
 Continue inhouse audits of registered 

care and community support services  
 Introduce new service reviews for 

Volunteers, Community Engagement and 
Fundraising  

 Comprehensive reviews of Learning 
Disability Houses and Moorcare have 
taken place. 

 We have developed and conducted 
comprehensive reviews of the Voluntary 
Service. 

 Audit reports have been forwarded to 
Committees and action plans compiled by 
managers to address key issues. 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 
LEEDS JEWISH WELFARE BOARD 
(A company limited by guarantee) 
  
 
 

TRUSTEES REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 

 

Page 6 
 

2019/20 Service Review 
 
Working hard to reduce social isolation and facilitating connections  
 
The Marjorie and Arnold Ziff Community Centre (MAZCC) remains a key focal point of service delivery. Our main activities 
are carried out by the Community Engagement, Inclusion and Community Support Services Teams.   
 
In 2019/20 we:  
 

 Provided over 45 different regular activities and classes which take place on a weekly basis, including creative, 
personal development, wellbeing, fitness and social and educational.  The programme offers a lifeline to those 
who might otherwise have found themselves experiencing loneliness and social isolation. 

 
 Recorded a footfall of 68,676 in that period. 

 
 Set up a transport service, thanks to the generous donation of an adapted vehicle, to take people to and from the 

Centre.  Approximately 25 service users, who would not otherwise be able to attend the MAZCC, benefitted from 
this each week. 

 
 Ran our ‘Lunch for Less’ - we have continued with our commitment to offer a kosher meal deal in the MAZCC every 

weekday providing a hot two-course meal for £5.00 to all visitors of all ages. 
 

 Delivered our Communications Project at the MAZCC and, during term time, 6th form volunteer students helped 
our ‘silver surfers’ with basic IT skills and the opportunity to assist with online shopping and keeping in touch with 
distant family members. This project has been mutually beneficial to the younger people who have developed key 
life skills of patience and understanding and have learnt from the experiences of their older peers. At the end of 
the school year, our volunteers and service users were invited for ‘Afternoon Tea and Entertainment’ at the 
Grammar School at Leeds (GSAL), hosted by the 6th Form students who had taken part in our Communications 
Project. 

 

 
 

 Grew our Community Allotment on the Henry Cohen campus.  This project has gone from strength to strength and 
benefitted both pupils from all year groups at the school, older people in the community and residents from our 
Learning Disability Houses. The positive impacts of outdoor horticultural activities are far reaching for physical and 
mental health issues such as mobility, arthritis, depression, loneliness and low self-esteem. Volunteers from the 
allotment project ran allotment produce stall at the school fair. 
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 Continued to provide a wide range of community events celebrating significant events in the Jewish calendar, the 
work of our volunteers and activities. In the past year, these included: 

o Purim Party 
o Chanukah Party 
o Diana Nelson Art Awards 
o Volunteer Awards 
o Learning Disability Week Celebrations 

 
 Received funding to run our Mishpachah Project, combating social isolation at festive times of the year. Our first 

intergenerational Chanukah Party was held on 30 December. 
 

 
 
The MAZCC remains as busy as ever with average monthly visit numbers of 5,422 and monthly attendance figures of 1,080.  
 
Attendance at our activity groups remains high and annual attendance figures include: 
 

 Wellbeing Event – weekly activity session open to all and offering friendship, entertainment and refreshments. 
Members of our community visited 1,610 times to enjoy our wellbeing activities. 

 Sing Yourself Happy – music is the key to opening memories and evoke emotion. We offer a weekly singing session, 
open to everyone to enjoy songs old and new, the company of others and refreshments, singing along 782 times 

 Chairobics – weekly sessions which offer low impact chair-based exercises supporting physical health 1,104 times. 
 Sensory Loss Social – supporting people with sensory loss to meet with each other, understand and find help for 

the challenges they face, and have fun. These monthly events supported 384 clients. 
 
We also:  
 

 Set up a Woodwork Project with staff and volunteers at Allerton High School and residents from our Learning 
Disability Houses to create bird boxes for the garden. The school gifted all teaching time, materials and tools. 

 Introduced the Chatty Café Scheme at the MAZCC to reduce social isolation. 
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Services to support older people 
 
We recognise that older people are particularly vulnerable to social isolation and loneliness owing to a loss of friends and 
family, mobility, lifestyle or income and this can have a detrimental effect on their health and wellbeing.  We work with 
service users to build support networks through a programme of social reintegration activities, befrienders / volunteering 
and a chat line. In addition, one to one support is also offered to ensure older people can remain living independently in 
their own homes for as long as possible. Services include: 
 

 Listening Line – telephone support is offered Monday to Friday from experienced volunteers helping those who 
may be isolated from family and friends or experiencing significant change in their lives. This period we were able 
to help 116 people from this service equating to over 900 hours of support to reduce social isolation. This is a 
reduction on the previous year due to further refinement and cleansing of the data. Each year we have continued 
to provide more accurate data collection. Previous information has counted some people more than once which 
was providing an inaccurate figure. During October 2019, a review was carried out by Quality Assurance, which 
showed overwhelming support and positive outcomes for both those receiving the service and volunteers who 
delivered it.  

 Our Community Support Service is able to offer a range of help and interventions to assist people to socialise, 
access other services and maintain independence.  Support ranges from help with telephone calls, letters, benefits, 
independent living and medical appointments to providing 1:1 grief recovery counselling and benefit advice. 

 
 

 
 
Sensory Loss 
Restricted funding given to LJWB by the Leeds Jewish Blind Society has enabled us to continue with a programme of sensory 
loss to all ages and members of our community.   
 
Support is offered on a one to one basis or in group sessions. Support workers are specially trained to maintain hearing aids 
and offer guidance on sensory loss living aids. Regular drop-in sessions are offered to provide further assistance and we 
have embarked on a programme of supporting people with sensory loss and educating our community in the challenges 
faced through sensory loss.  
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We held a joint event with Leeds Hearing and Sight Loss services (BID) at the MAZCC in September 2019 for National Eye 
Week. We held this event to increase awareness and inform people who suffer from sight or hearing impairment what 
support is available to them. More than 60 people attended the event, which included: 

 Demonstrations of equipment and discussions about new and up and coming technology. There was also time for 
clients to trial and have hands-on experience of equipment to determine if they would find it useful.  

 Food tasting sessions, such as tasting Roasted Kale and Carrot Soup – both these foods contain two of the most 
essential antioxidants for health eyes.  

 Working with the hospital-based Eye Clinical Liaison Officer, providing information and support should anyone 
need to access the clinic. 

 
Other events held during the year were: 

 Hosting two Visionary Regional Meetings  
 Hearing Aid drop-in sessions on the second Tuesday of each month 
 Sensory sessions for Learning Disabilities, supporting our learning disability houses 
 Chanukah party in December 

 
Carers 
The role of an unpaid carer is often extremely isolating, challenging and can lead to people feeling lonely and depressed.  
In addition to support provided by our Community Support Services team we offered a carer’s support group to make sure 
that no carer is alone in their journey of supporting their loved ones, which can include courses, signposting and emotional 
support. During this period 80 carers attended the groups. 
 
Living Project 
Throughout the three years of the project, LJWB have worked with the local Jewish and wider community through 
established networks, and visiting synagogues, schools, services and local community partnerships to promote a better 
understanding of dementia, the services available and where to access help and support.  
 
We concentrated on ensuring that people living with dementia and their family carers had access to effective services for 
early diagnosis and were guided to the most appropriate support from this point onwards. Early diagnosis empowered 
people to participate in planning their own future, ensuring that they live well with dementia, not live with dementia. The 
various project interventions and support focused on increasing confidence, supporting independence, reducing isolation, 
and improving physical and mental wellbeing.  
 
We promoted the idea of the Jewish and wider community becoming a Dementia Friendly community in North Leeds. LJWB 
delivered a number of ‘Dementia Friends’ programmes run by our own Dementia Friends Champions to local businesses, 
services, staff and volunteers across North Leeds. By the end of the project we had trained 399 people of all ages in 
becoming a dementia friend. 
 
By having a community who ‘understood’ dementia we were able to focus on those most in need of our services. The 
services delivered in the project focussed on three key components to ensure a range of holistic support was offered:  

i. Initial assessment, case management and ongoing support as and when required to access services, activities, 
signposting and guidance.  

ii. Delivery of a range of activities to help those with dementia and their carers become / remain engaged within 
the communities they live.  
 

Specialist counselling and support for people living with dementia and their carers.
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During the lifespan of the Living Project, the team supported: 
 314 clients with 1:1 support work plus emotional and practical support.  
 Signposting of 69 clients. 
 75 clients to receive services from other professional organisations.  
 Meeting attendance.  

 
Services to carers included:  

 Fortnightly “caring for dementia” group, facilitated by a specialist counsellor.  
 Special guest speakers at Carer events.  
 Social outings. 

 
Most activities took place at the MAZCC. The centre is fully accessible, but we wanted to ensure that the space was also 
dementia friendly. We consulted with several specialists and commissioned two surveys to appraise the building and make 
recommendations as to how the space could be more inclusive. As a result of these surveys, we: 

 Replaced signs within the centre to be more dementia friendly.  
 Repainted corridors and walkways in dementia appropriate contrasting colours.  
 Installed immersive technology in our largest communal space to provide an interactive therapy space.  

 
The space was designed to engage the user and provide them with engaging, fun, and memorable experiences. The space 
presents a powerful audio and visual experience, enabling multiple types of interaction and will support various bespoke 
activities particularly for those living with dementia. 
 
The wellbeing group varied the activities on offer, including visiting entertainers, film screenings and sessions involving 
bingo. Over the lifetime of the project we facilitated 315 dementia specific activities with 85 individual attendees. This 
equated to 8,925 contacts per year to reduce social isolation. 
 
People living with dementia who received counselling through the Living Project talked about feeling confident and more 
at ease with their situations. Through speaking to a counsellor, some people with dementia were able to maintain their 
independence and express their wishes more clearly to their loved ones. Some reported having addressed concerns they 
had about their future, although counselling focused primarily on life reflection enabling them to make peace with their 
experiences. They also reported feelings of acceptance with their current situations. 
 
Through our observation of Living Project group sessions offered by the MAZCC, we observed consistently high levels of 
wellbeing in people living with dementia as a result of the activities on offer. People with dementia were supported to 
express themselves through creative activities, take part in physical activity, and enjoy the social networking opportunities 
afforded to them through group participation. 
 
LJWB received recognition for their work with people with dementia in an article published in the British Association for 
Counselling and Psychotherapy, (BACP).  
 
Services to support people with mental health and wellbeing 
 
Funding from the 1 in 4 Dinner, Leeds City Council, Women and Welfare, and LJHA enables Support Workers from the 
Community Support Service to provide a wide range of practical and emotional support to people experiencing mental 
health issues. Support is offered and agreed on an individual basis to meet the unique needs of each person and we aim to 
intervene early to promote wellbeing and support recovery.  
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The range of services we offer to support positive mental health is diverse and can include: 
 

 Practical Support – our Support Workers help alleviate stress and anxiety by providing immediate practical help 
such as making telephone calls, letters, appointment attendance, tenancy support and accessing services delivered 
by LJWB and other organisations. 

 Emotional Support – our Support Workers are in regular contact with people during difficult and unhappy times in 
their lives and are with them as long as they are needed.  

 Signposting – our Support Workers have extensive networks and a wealth of knowledge regarding alternative 
health, social care, and voluntary sector organisations that can provide advice and support. These range from 
counselling sessions delivered at the MAZCC with a partner agency, signposting and referrals to other local 
voluntary and statutory providers and increasingly online advice and support from specialist national 
organisations. 

 Specialist Support Groups – facilitated by members of the team, our Women’s, Carers and Sensory Loss 
groups  enable people to connect with others in similar situations, share their personal experiences, offer 
emotional support and advice and provide opportunities for peer companionship. 

 Supporting people through loss – we have Support Workers who are certified in delivering the Grief Recovery 
Method. The programme is designed and structured to help people cope with the grief arising from losses in their 
lives and move on to have a fulfilling future. Our trained facilitators can deliver this on a 1:1 or group basis to help 
people achieve this.   

 Mental Health First Aid – LJWB is licensed to facilitate the Mental Health First Aid Training Programme which 
enables participants to understand, identify, and help someone who maybe experiencing a mental health 
issue.  The programme teaches participants how to listen, reassure and respond, even in a crisis – and even 
potentially stop a crisis from happening.  

 
Community services for people with learning disabilities 
 
Through charitable funds and a contributory grant from Leeds City Council, we are able to provide support for people living 
with a learning disability independently in our community.  Help includes managing correspondence, money management, 
healthy lifestyles and sourcing alternative avenues of help to facilitate living a fulfilled life and develop or maintain 
independence. In addition to 1:1 support, a monthly social is arranged and overseen by a service user steering group to 
offer a safe place for people to meet and socialise.   
 
The MAZCC remains registered as a “Safe Place” for anyone living in Leeds with a Learning Disability.  This means that when 
out and about, if a person with a living disability becomes distressed or feels unsafe, they know that they can access help 
and support and be safe in our building. 
 
In the past year: 
 

 62 people with learning disabilities have been supported to meet new friends and take part in activities. 
 54 people with learning disabilities are helped regularly each month on a one-to-one basis to socialise, access 

other services and maintain their independence.  
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Services to support young children and their parents 
 
Since the Family Support Service was established in January 2019, our community offer has gone from strength to strength. 
Working with the Family Services Committee, we have built on the foundation of the Pregnancy and Preschool Project 
(formerly '1001 Days') and 'Together' Sunday Club for children with additional needs. 
 

 
 
Our expanded activities offer now incorporates three new targeted and inclusive activities for children with additional 
needs throughout the week. The Pregnancy and Preschool Project continues to thrive, and our one-to-one support for 
parents and children has been developed to meet a wide range of family needs. 
 
We saw an increase in footfall to our Pregnancy and Preschool Project by 121 over the same period last year.  
 
This year we received 49 referrals and held more than 350 face to face meetings with clients, 19 of which have been Early 
Help or Child in Need meetings. 
 
Our delivery of activities for children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) has been a significant area of 
growth during the past year. The Sunday Club is continuing to provide a fun social activity for young children, while older 
children can now enjoy three new after school activities each week. Lego Club, Inclusive Art Group and the 'Immerse 
Yourself' immersive technology group provide a range of activities to suit a wide variety of children. 
 
40 children have attended our range of SEND and inclusive activities this year. 
 
In 2019/20 our 'TimeOut' Summer scheme welcomed 48 children across seven days of activities. Children aged 5-11 enjoyed 
sports, cycling, DJing, graffiti, crafts and more! Children told us how much they enjoyed it with feedback such as “I don’t 
want it to end”, and "I made a list of all the summer camps and this is Number 1!" Funding from the Alwoodley Councillors, 
Inner North East Community Committee, and Manny Cussins Foundation also enabled us to be more inclusive than ever 
before, offering 20 financial subsidies and welcoming 13 children with Special Educational Needs or Disabilities (an increase 
of 9 from the previous year). 
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Registered Care  
 
Moorcare 
In line with many other domiciliary care providers, Moorcare has continued to address the challenges faced by funding 
regimes of local authorities, increased demands and expectations from our regulators and the recruitment of high-quality 
carers and support workers within the Leeds region. Following a comprehensive review of the service, a number of 
significant changes to ensure that the service continued to modernise have been embedded.  
 
Our staff remain committed to providing domiciliary services seven days per week in all weathers and have had to overcome 
many of the logistical issues faced when large scale events occur in North Leeds, for example Tour de Yorkshire, Triathlon 
and Leeds Marathon.  
 
During this period, Moorcare delivered care and support to an average of 95 people each week in the north Leeds area. 
From November 2019, Moorcare no longer delivered respite support to Leeds City Council following a re-tender process 
and concentrated on delivery of personal care support. Moorcare worked collaboratively with Leeds City Council on a 
smooth and trouble-free transition of the respite service to a new provider.  
 
Ongoing negotiations with Leeds City Council and the local Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) have resulted in more 
realistic and cost-effective rates being agreed. Moorcare continues to have a ‘Good’ rating with CQC 
 
Learning Disability Residential Care 
LJWB operates houses for adults with learning disabilities across three houses in north Leeds.  These three care homes are 
the only Jewish residential care homes for adults with learning disabilities in Yorkshire. Residents take an extremely active 
part in running the home, including recruiting staff, planning their own meals and activities and decoration within the home.  
 
Some highlights from the year include: 

 Intensive interaction with residents and relatives to improve communication. 
 Introducing assistive technology including eye gaze boards, micro switches, tablets, voice-activated virtual 

assistants, smart watches and TVs. 
 Day trips including theatre trips, panto trips, Strictly Come Dancing live, music events, Barry Manilow live, autism 

friendly screenings at cinema, Kitty Café visits, museum visits, Eden camp, playing snooker at local jazz/blue clubs, 
family home visits to Manchester, trips to Headingley stadium to watch 
cricket, and Elland road for football. 

 Holidays to Filey, the Lake District, and Blackpool to see the lights.  
 Inclusive arts sessions and winning the Purim competition. 
 In-house activities including themed evenings, country nights, Halloween 

party, cultural activities, partaking in all Jewish festivals, Seder nights, 
Channukah party, Rosh Hashanah parties. 

 Alternative therapies, rebound trampolining, swimming lessons, adaptive 
cycling for residents.   

 Further training and support for staff to deliver and administer PEG 
medication.  

 Creating mood boards and plans to decorate the houses.  
 Revamping all gardens with support from Homebase.  
 Creating memory garden at MAZCC 
 Resident achieving a life-long goal of seeing Kylie live in concert. 
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Service users in the houses can access wider support and activities run by LJWB. This includes 1:1 support, drop-in sessions 
and help to facilities residents’ meetings – acting as an advocate if required.   
 
During this period, we have developed Team Leaders in each of the three learning disability homes. The purpose of these 
roles is to deputise for the Home Manager and to work alongside a team of Support Workers providing hands-on care and 
support. Tasks include shift planning, general administration and record keeping, care and support planning including 
reviews, supporting residents with daily life activities including personal care.  Staff support includes staff supervision, 
appraisal, shift handovers, staff competency checks, and compliance checks. 

We have also continued to further refine the person-centred support planning process, which has included developing 
more accessible and easy read versions of paperwork. 

Within Lily Thompson House, we welcomed two new residents and supported Leeds City Council with an emergency 
admission. 

The Cranmer Scheme and Montague Burton House both continue to maintain “Good” CQC ratings across all five of the 
KLOE’s namely – Safe, Effective, Caring, Well-Led and Responsive. 
 
Our People 
 
Key Statistics 
 

 During the period the LJWB employee headcount was 146 members of staff, of which 81% were female and 19% 
were male.  

 37.7% of employees were engaged on a full-time contract, 35.6% employees on part time contracts, and 26.7% 
with other forms of contractual arrangements (NB includes bank staff).  

 Absence levels in 2019/20 increased slightly due to long term illnesses, such as operations and recovery. Overall 
absence increased by 0.5% to 2.5%, which is below the national NHS North East and Yorkshire absence rate of 
4.62%.  

 Without our 220+ volunteers we would not be able to run the range of activities, services, fundraising, events and 
governing the organisation. It is estimated that they bring an average of £169,5001 in value of additional support.   

 Our staff and volunteers collectively undertake over 65 different roles and functions for LJWB (as defined by role 
or job descriptions). 

 By working in partnership with other agencies in Leeds, LJWB welcomed one internship from Leeds University who 
developed our Graphic Design portfolio and we welcomed six ‘Step into Care’ placements from Leeds City Council. 
We attended three Leeds City Council Recruitment Events at Civic Hall 

 We also recruited younger volunteers through our 
partnerships with the Grammar School at Leeds, Allerton High 
School, and Brodetsky. 

 
We continued to be committed to safe and effective onboarding 
process, selection and retention of all employees and volunteers. Our 
approach includes the taking up of two written references, initial and 
annual Disclosure & Barring Service checks and ongoing appraisal, 
supervision and training programme.

 
1 Office of National Statistics Analysis of Employee Earnings 2018 



 
 

 
LEEDS JEWISH WELFARE BOARD 
(A company limited by guarantee) 
  
 
 

TRUSTEES REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 

 

Page 15 
 

Training delivered during this period has included: 
 

 Mandatory training for care staff in line with the requirements of the Care Certificate 
 Introduction of eLearning for Care Staff which allows greater flexibility 
 Development of online training for Infection Control and Food Hygiene 
 Introduction of Management Training Programme  
 Introduction of Skills for Care Management Training Programme for our Registered Care Services 
 Level 2 Dementia Awareness 
 Autism 
 Positive Behaviour Support 
 SMART target setting 
 End of Life care 
 Complaints Handling 
 Care Certificate Assessors 
 Safeguarding 
 GDPR 
 Case Recording 
 Health & Safety 
 Legionella  
 Fire and First Aid Training 
 Security Briefings  
 Leading Jewishly 
 Organizational Story Telling 
 Valuable Conversations  

 
 

We provided a range of on-going support activities to our employees in line with best practice, including: 
 

 Welcome Lunch 
 Induction programmes 
 Learning Lunches 
 Wellbeing Lunches 
 Access to our employee assistance programme and counselling services 
 Access to internal and external training & conferences 
 Weekly Staff Emails 
 Quarterly staff newsletters 
 Invitations to LJWB cultural events and activities 
 Regular team meetings including coffee catch up chats 
 Supervisions and appraisals 
 Counselling support through our in-house grief recovery team 
 Birthday cards 
 Thank you’s via our HRIS system 
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Head Office 
 
Head office functions include: 

 CEO Office 
 Governance 
 Grants 
 Quality Assurance, Improvement & Training Team 
 Finance 
 HR 
 Facilities Management 
 Fundraising 

 

Led by the CEO, day to day operational delivery is overseen by the Senior Leadership Team, each having reporting 
responsibilities to either the Board or a sub-committee of the Board.  As of March 2020, the team comprised of: 

Name  Role  Committee Reporting Line   

Elizabeth Bradbury  
Chief Executive Officer & 
Company Secretary  

LJWB’s Board of Trustees, LJWB’s Care & Wellbeing 
Committee plus attendance at all committees  

Cate Tracey 
Head of Finance, HR & 
Facilities  

LJWB’s Finance and Business Continuity Committee, HR & 
Remuneration Committee  

Clayton Moore  
Community Support 
Operations Manager  LJWB’s Care & Wellbeing Committee 

Tracy Bickler  
Community Engagement & 
Inclusion Manager  

LJWB’s Community Engagement & Inclusion Committee 

Julie Blundell 
Quality Assurance, 
Improvement & Training 
Manager 

Provision of various reports to individual committees as 
requested. 

Tracie Harrison 
 

Fundraising Manager LJWB’s Fundraising Committee, Shop Committee 

 

Remuneration  
 
Remuneration for the Senior Leadership Team is determined by the Board of Trustees. Levels of remuneration are set by 
the Remuneration Committee to ensure LJWB attracts good people into these critical roles with reference to market 
conditions and the specific skills required.  
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Partnerships 
 
This year has also seen a closer working relationship with community and statutory organisations across the City.  Ongoing 
relationships include: 
 Donisthorpe Hall 
 Forum Central 
 Leeds City Council  
 Leeds Jewish Housing Association 
 Leeds Jewish Representative Council 
 McQue’s Catering 
 Older People’s Forum 
 The Zone 
 Voluntary Action Leeds 
 West Yorkshire Children with Additional Needs Network 
 Young Lives Leeds 

 
We also continued our relationships with the Care Quality Commission, Leeds Kashrut Authority and providers of learning 
disability services across Leeds.  
 
Key 2019/20 Achievements 
 
In addition to increasing the number of people we support daily we have also implemented several key changes and 
improvements including:  

 Back to the Floor exercise for our Senior Leadership team to experience front-line service delivery and the 
challenges this brings  

 Communication plan – outlining how we communicate with employees.  This includes new quarterly CEO Open 
Door Forum  

 New Catering contract with McQues  
 Relatives Guide – Learning Disability Services  
 Quality Management Framework – new contract management framework with LCC. 

 
Complaints, Compliments and Customer Feedback 
 
Complaints, compliments and customer feedback is taken extremely seriously by LJWB. The Senior Leadership Team 
regularly review data received and all outcomes and learning from complaints and gripes and grumbles.  
From 01 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 LJWB received: 
 
 Total number of complaints x 10 
 Gripes and grumbles x 34 (these include comments from service users, carers, family members, staff and members 

of other organisations) 
 

The number of formal complaints across the organisation continue to be minimal and all were actioned and / or addressed 
satisfactorily in line with LJWB and LCC policies and procedures. No complaints required escalation or were forwarded by 
service users directly to the Local Authority. These, together with gripes and grumbles, continued to be monitored and 
changes in processes and procedures implemented as a result of feedback from service users and staff. The effectiveness 
of these were also were also monitored as part of service reviews by the QA team.  
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Changes have included: 
 New procedure implemented within Moorcare to ensure care and support staff communicate with the office the 

reason why they have left a call early.  
 Increased spot checks carried out in all Registered Care services. 
 New customer standards developed re timescales for responses to calls and assessments within Moorcare and 

Community Support Service 
 Revised systems regarding internal communication within the wider organisation 
 Increased engagement with all parties when planned changes are implemented to service delivery within the 

Community Support Team. 
 
Total number of compliments x 113 

 
Of the 113 people who kindly gave LJWB compliments, 77 came directly from people who use LJWB services, 18 were made 
by relatives or carers and 18 were made by professionals from other organisations 
 
When using our services people have said: 
 
Service User 
“X (Support Worker) has been absolutely wonderful to me he has been there for me every week. He has chased me when 
I’m too depressed to speak to anyone to check on me which is a sign of an amazing support worker. X has made feel better 
about my life and support network.“ 
 
Moorcare Family Member 
“Just wanted to say a huge thank you for all your care, help and patience in enabling my mother in law to be independent 
but safe in her own home. Your help with the Social Care team has been invaluable!”  
 
ASC Social Worker re Montague Burton House 
“Excellent planning and management of complex situation with resident, being proactive with arrangement for review of 
residents needs to ensure DOLS is not excessive. Positive risk management and review of care needs to support the 
management of the residents ongoing support.”  
 
Senior District Nurse re Cramer Scheme 
“Me and the student nurse Billie have been coming to this residence for the past few weeks. I am amazed by the staff here. 
They all work fantastically and provide amazing support and care to the service users. I look forward in coming to visit 
residents and staff.” 
 
Partner Agency 
“Thank you so much for hosting us yesterday. We had a wonderful time and X (the 95-year-old gent we brought along) said 
it was the best time he’s had in years” 
 
Family Member- Moorcare (support given by carer when accompanying client to dentist) 
“Called later to see how she was. Made my family feel X was really cared for and looked after.”  
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Safeguarding 
 
In the reporting period we handled 14 safeguarding incidents:  
 LJWB made 14 safeguarding referrals to the Safeguarding team at Leeds City Council, (LCC).  These related to the 

health and wellbeing of clients whom we provide a service for and the concerns we had about the environment they 
received services in from other providers and relationships they had with their family and carers. In all situations the 
concerns were followed up and appropriate interventions made.  None of these cases remain open.  

 LJWB made four referrals to the police. These did not conclude in criminal proceedings. However, as a result the 
service users received an increased level of support.  

 Internal Safeguarding processes have been reviewed to improve the quality of the reporting and recording methods 
and procedures.  

 
Serious untoward incident reporting 
No serious untoward incidents were reported to the Charities Commission during this period.  
 
Governance and Risk Management 
 
LJWB is a company limited by guarantee, governed by its memorandum and articles of association adopted on the 12th 
October 2015. The main document governing the conduct of the Trust's activities is the charity's constitution. It is a 
registered charity with the Charity Commission. 
 
LJWB does not have a share capital and the guaranteed liability of each member (trustee) is limited to £1. No member of 
the Board has an interest in shares required to be registered and reported under the Companies Act 2006. 
 
LJWB is overseen by a Board of Trustees, which consists of eight Trustees led by the Chairperson, who provide governance 
to the organisation.  The Trustees formally meet as a Board six times a year to discuss, challenge and review the activities 
of LJWB in line with the roles and responsibilities as defined by the Charities Commission. The Board also delegates 
responsibility to six sub-committees each led by a Trustee to look at our work in more detail.   
 
The sub-committees include members of the community. The CEO, Governance Officer and Senior Leadership Team 
responsible for the service delivery area are in attendance. The sub-committees are: 
 Care and Wellbeing 
 Community Engagement and Inclusion 
 Finance and Business Continuity 
 Fundraising  
 HR & Remuneration 
 Investment 

 
The Trustees act on a voluntary basis and receive no remuneration for the performance of their duties. Trustee activities 
are insured by a Trustee indemnity insurance policy paid for by LJWB. 
 
The Chief Executive is employed by the Board and reports directly to the Chairperson.  The CEO is responsible for the day-
to-day operations of the organisation and is supported by a Senior Leadership Team who report directly to this position. To 
facilitate effective operations, the Chief Executive has delegated authority, within terms of delegation approved by the 
Trustees, for all operational matters including finance and fundraising, employment, social and registered care services.  
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Trustee Appointment, Induction and Training 
 
Trustees are recruited in line with the Trustee Recruitment Policy to ensure suitability for office, based on experience, skills 
and knowledge. Trustees also have to present themselves for reappointment in line with the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association byelaws.   
 
Succession planning is a key focus for LJWB Trustees. Trustees are already familiar with the work of LJWB as they will have 
served on a sub-committee of the Board for at least one year before being eligible to apply to be a trustee. Once appointed, 
trustees are expected to chair / attend at least one sub-committee and as part of their induction processes spend time with 
the professional staff to give a comprehensive overview of the company. 
 
New trustees are provided with key documentation to allow them to understand the role and responsibilities of the trustee 
function. An induction process is in place and additional relevant training is available for all trustees. Trustees are expected 
to visit our services and take part in communal activities and events.  Trustees must also agree to adhere to our Code of 
Conduct, Data Protection Policy, Declaration of Interests requirements and undertake regular DBS checks.  
 
Trustees undertake a regular review of their effectiveness against the Charity Commission Governance Code of Conduct as 
well as reviewing their skills mix.  
 
Trustee Terms of Office 
 
Trustees hold office for three years from the date of their appointment at the end of which they shall be eligible for re-
appointment for one or more further terms of three years each, but having served their maximum term of office of nine 
consecutive years shall not be eligible for re-appointment until one year after their retirement as a LJWB Trustee. 
 
During 2019/20, no trustee reached the end of their term of office or resigned, and no new trustees were appointed. 
 
Related Parties  
 
LJWB has a close working relationship with Leeds Jewish Housing Association (LJHA) and Donisthorpe Hall.  Both are 
separate entities with their own Board of Trustees. LJWB occupies residential homes owned by LJHA and LJWB has made 
investment loans to LJHA as disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements. 
 
Risk Management Arrangements 
 
LJWB has developed an approach to good governance that includes the development of strategic risk register and a risk 
management strategy which reviews the risk that the charity faces and has established a system and procedures to mitigate 
those risks. An overall organisational risk management plan is presented to and reviewed regularly by the Board of Trustees. 
Operational risk assessments are carried out regularly and recorded in relation to individual service users and clients, events 
and activities, staff, visitors and commercial activities. These are monitored and overseen by members of the Senior 
Leadership Team and the respective committee to which they report. 
 
Each of the registered care services has a risk register for the service and where appropriate risk logs for service users / 
clients. These services have their own Business Continuity Plans and the remaining services fall under the LJWB Business 
Continuity Plan, all of which are evaluated externally.  
 
Brexit plans have been produced and these documents contain mitigating actions should the supply of goods, services and 
personnel be adversely affected. Detailed plans have been produced in response to the Coronavirus outbreak.  
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The trustees review the risk log and mitigating actions regularly, the risk highlighted in the 2018-19 report remain – albeit 
with additional mitigating actions to reduce the risk further. At the end of 2019/20 the trustees believe the following to be 
the key risks facing the organisation: 
 

Risk  Mitigating Action  

The physical risk of our community 
centre, which co-locates office staff 
and community activities 

 Regular meetings and partnership with CST – the Community 
Security Team.  

 Liaison with external security advisors to ensure that the building 
is as safe as possible. 

 Engage a specialist security firm to provide security guards at the 
MAZCC. 

 Regular meetings with West Yorkshire Police Service.  
 Attendance at community briefings.  
 Staff receive training in counter terrorism and handling of 

threatening calls, post etc.  
 Establishment of Operational Security / Response Group.  

Information security/data protection 
and IT systems breach / failure 

 Cyber security review and awarded Cyber certification. 
 Contract with external agency to provide support, backup and 

advice.  
 Upgrade of IT system including Firewall. 
 Appropriate insurance.  
 GDPR and data policy & training and lead GDPR Officer. 

Funding arrangements  

 Review of contracts to ensure longevity of funding arrangements 
and best value when purchasing. 

 Re-negotiation of contracts for individual spot contracts.  
 Review of tenders prior to submission to ensure able to break-

even / full cost recovery.  Where appropriate contracts have not 
been renewed, e.g. LCC Respite Contract.  

 Robust arrangements in place for signing of contracts and review 
of grant submissions.  

 Cash flow management.  
 Realistic incoming planning.  

Staffing – train, retain and recruit 
suitable calibre of staff to deliver the 
services required.  

 Dedicated post of ‘recruiter’.  
 Review of pay rates and benefits.  
 In-house training function.  
 Social media and other campaigns to engage with a wider 

recruitment pool. 
 In-house referral scheme. 
 Staff support mechanisms.  
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Risk  Mitigating Action  

Coronavirus – responding to the 
global pandemic and its effects on 
people, places, services and funding 
pressures   

 Detailed and dynamic Covid-19 risk assessments for all services. 
 Training for all staff in infection control and where appropriate 

PPE etc. 
 Arrangements to work from home where staff can.  
 Reforecast of 2020/21 budget.  
 Revised service delivery plans to charity beneficiaries.  
 Cost savings exercises including use of furlough scheme, staff 

restructure and redundancies. 
 Revised funding raising strategy including grant applications.  
 Communication and engagement plans with staff and enhanced 

staff support mechanisms.  
 Use of Covid-19 government business support schemes.  

 
 
Public Benefit 
 
In shaping our objectives for the year and planning our activities, the trustees have considered the Charity Commission’s 
guidance on public benefit, including the guidance ‘public benefit: running a charity (PB2)’.  The charity relies on grants, 
donations and operating surpluses, the income from fees and charges to cover its costs. Affordability and access to our 
services is important to us and one which we constantly review, as is the costs associated with delivering our services.   
 
Strategies employed to achieve the Charity’s objectives have been to: 
 Undertake regular service reviews to understand service take up and unmet community need. 
 Develop and provide a wide range of services and wellbeing activities to reduce social isolation amongst our 

community.  Ensure that we as a centre remain accessible by changing opening times and offering transport to take 
part in activities outside the home. 

 Offer a wide range of activities and points of engagement for all ages and abilities.  
 Provide flexible levels of support and assistance to help people to remain as independent as possible recognising the 

additional needs of some members of our community including those with a mental health problem, learning 
disability or difficulty, physical disability and sensory loss.  

 Developing and delivering an enhanced model of employment, training and volunteer options to ensure that we 
have the right people to deliver our services in a cost-effective and sustainable way.  

 
Fundraising 
 
As a charity, LJWB relies heavily on donations from generous individuals, organisations and supporter groups, to be able to 
improve wellbeing and reduce social isolation, for hundreds of people each week. Fundraised income allows us to offer a 
wide range of activities for all ages and abilities, as well as specialist support for those who need it in line with our charitable 
objectives. 
 
In 2019/20 we received £760,816 in fundraised and grant income, representing a 6.3% increase against fundraised income 
received in 2018/19 (not including legacy income). 
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Income was raised in a variety of ways, to ensure sustainability. Key annual fundraised income streams include: 
 New Year Appeal 
 1 in 4 Dinner 
 Retail shop income 
 Annual Brochure 
 Simchas 
 Challenge income 

 
We were remembered in the Wills of eight generous individuals, receiving £43,811.30 in legacies. 
 
Supporter groups continued to raise vital funds by organising fundraising events, such as: 
 AM AM Golf Day  
 Gale Bridge Tournament  
 FLAG Annual Dinner 
 ‘Bar Mitzvah’ event  
 Women4Welfare Coffee Morning 

 
181 supporters gave a regular donation to LJWB in 2019/20, raising an annual total of £166,179.49 from this form of giving. 
Gifts vary greatly in size and the modal amount is £10. 
 
Trusts and foundations continue to be a key source of income. In 2019/20, we received grant income for: 
 The Living Project funded through the National Lottery Reaching Communities fund  
 Contribution to security guard costs from CST Security Grant – provided by central Government 
 Leeds City Council provided a grant of £70,000  
 Contribution to refreshment costs for an event from the International Day of Older People 
 £8,504 was awarded by Leeds City Council via their Inner North East and Outer North East Community Committees 

for our Time Out SummerScheme  
 £300 was received from Carers Leeds which contributed towards refreshments for Carers Week and meetings 

throughout the year 
 The Lodge of Dawn Masonic Trust donated £287 towards our mental health work 
 £3,000 was received from the Jonah & Irene Guttentag Charitable Trust to support the Women’s Group 
 Physcap donated £5,000 which we used to develop our Special Educational Needs and Disabilities Support Services 
 The Bartlett Foundation donated £1,500 to our work  
 The Worth Charitable Trust donated £600 towards our mental health work  
 Leeds Community Foundation donated £2,500 towards our Miscpacha Project  
 The Fineman Trust donated £200 to our mental health work  
 £800 was received from the Cecil Rosen Foundation  

 
The future of fundraising at LJWB  
For all charities, the fundraising landscape has changed dramatically, because of Covid-19. Government restrictions mean 
that traditional fundraising, such as large-scale events and challenges, cannot currently take place. LJWB responded to the 
coronavirus outbreak by launching the Crisis Appeal which was extremely well supported.   
 
LJWB is acutely aware that all of its donors will have been affected by the coronavirus in some way and so we anticipate 
fundraising activity to reduce significantly. Therefore, the LJWB fundraising function has been reviewed and will be reduced 
to conserve expenditure but ensure there is a point of contact for donors and robust plans to continue fundraising.  
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The CEO office will continue to coordinate bids to trusts and foundations, who still have the ability to provide medium and 
large grants. 
 
Fundraising will take some time to recover, however we are in no doubt that we have an extremely loyal and 
generous community who we are confident, will continue to support our vital work as much as they possibly can. 
 
Looking forward to 2020/21 
 
As the challenges to social and health care budgets increase, we know that the support we offer will become more and 
more crucial to helping our communities live fulfilled lives. We also know that we can’t be all things to all people and want 
to make sure that we continue to do more of what we do well and develop new services when there is a clear reason and 
need to do so. The challenge of Covid-19, lockdown, movement restrictions etc has meant that we are rapidly developing 
a revised service offering to include more services online, and provision of face to face services utilising Covid-19 secure 
measures. We cannot underestimate the impact which the pandemic has had on our service users, staff, donors and 
community and we continue to work hard to respond to the challenges this brings.  
 
To do this we will ensure that the basis upon which we work is built on six key foundations:  
 
1. Ensuring that we are able to operate a well led, managed and sustainable ‘business. We are in the business of caring 

for people – we have to care for the business to be able to care and support our locality.  Managing and maximises 
resources to increase our impact and be mindful of our costs. 
 

2. Measuring the impact of the work we do, why and how we do it.  We want to be the best we can be, and we can 
only do this by knowing that what we do has a significant positive impact.  Benchmarking against the best in class 
and ensuring that we are compliant in what and how we deliver our services.   
 

3. Finding money to fund the services we offer (and where there is a continued need to do so).  Funding may come 
from grants, trusts, contracts, investments and donations.  When we develop new services, we must make sure that 
we are able to fund them now and for the lifespan of the service or project.   

 
4. Working in partnership with other organisations.  There is strength in unity and being able to maximise on our 

respective skills to increase the collective impact of our operations.  If someone else if providing the service or can 
do it better, then we should reflect on why we need to do it – if at all.  
 

5. Leading and managing our services collectively.  Ensuring robust governance arrangements, a strong and cohesive 
leadership and management team and a culture which provides individual challenges and opportunities for growth 
in line with business objectives and, opportunities for fun and learning.  
 

6. Knowing and placing our customers at the heart of everything we do, keeping them in our hearts and minds and 
making sure that everyone who we serve has a positive experience. 
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We want LJWB to serve our locality for the next 140+ years, but we cannot do this alone.  To achieve our ambition of 
positively changing lives we need everyone to work together and be strong in the face of challenge, change and increased 
demands on the work we do. We have always been a social organisation – it is what we have always been about and will 
continue to do so.  
 
 Social participation – fundraising, volunteering, leadership through governance.  Empowering others to learn and 

using our knowledge to help others.  
 

 Social inclusion – being supportive and offering a wide range of service to meet the needs of all our locality.  Treating 
everyone the same.  
 

 Social responsibility – making the locality a better place, extending kindness to our locality and creating a community 
of choice – loving our neighbour. 
 

 Social change an active member of our locality becomes an agent and target of social change – building on the legacy 
of our forefather. 

 
Key targets for delivery 2020/21  
 
Each service in LJWB has its own operational and development plan. Following any internal or external audits we develop 
an action plan (if required) aiming to constantly improve all our services.  
 
Our key targets for 2020/21 are: 
 

 Responding proactively and positively to all the challenges Covid-19 brings and ensuring continuity of safe service 
provision.  
 

 Developing a new assessment and independent review function to provide an enhanced customer response and 
ongoing support to help people live better lives 
 

 Increase LJWB’s profile on a local, regional, and national stage 
 

 Embedding LJWB values and an enhanced understanding of Jewish Values – ambition to have a strong values 
driven / service user centric organisation 
 

 Becoming efficient, effective, and safe at what we do.  
 

 Nailing the message – ensuring all stakeholders understand the work and impact of LJWB.  
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Financial Summary 
 

Overview 
Incoming resources for 2020 were £3.6m compared to £3.8m in 2019.  Expenditure decreased by £175,000 (4%) over the 
same period to £3.8m.  Before investments, the net expenditure in the year was £226,000 increasing from a like for like net 
expenditure of £208,000 in 2019.  A loss on investments of £341,000 resulted in a net expenditure of £568,000.   
 

Income 
Income from Donations and Legacies increased by £59,000 to £804,000.  We were fortunate to receive legacy income of 
£44,000 in the year (2019: £21,000).  The charity continues to benefit from the generous support of hundreds of donors 
and in particular during our successful New Year Appeal. 
 

Charitable activities income decreased by £242,000 (8%) to £2.7m in the year. Our main sources of income continue to be 
Local Authority contracts for the Learning Disability residential services and Moorcare domiciliary care.  Income from the 
Learning Disability residential service decreased from £1.6m in 2019 to £1.5m in 2020, reflecting a level of residential 
vacancies over the period. Moorcare continue to face challenges in their income streams due to changes of contracts with 
statutory agencies and the number of people supported by statutory bodies, increasing from £890,000 in 2019 to £896,000 
in 2020. Community Support Services (CSS) funding decreased in the year from £333,000 in 2019 to £185,000 in 2020, with 
the completion of the Neshama & Living Projects, funded by the National Lottery.  CSS continue to receive a small grant 
from Leeds City Council for the provision of Community Support and from LJHA in relation to the support of their tenants 
with mental health issues. 
 

Community Engagement and Inclusion income increased from £70,000 in 2019 to £75,000 in 2020 with continued 
investment in the Listening Line and additional services being provided in response to community requirements. MAZCC 
income increased from £58,000 in 2019 to £61,000 in 2020. 
 

Investment income decreased from £112,000 in 2019 to £103,000 in 2020.  
 

Expenditure 
Expenditure on charitable activities in the year totalled £3.6m, which is a £227,000 (6%) decrease on 2019.  As with the 
prior years, a proportion of expenditure was funded from reserves to continue to fund charitable services in response to 
community need as well as posts funded through our grant income. 
 

£2.6m (69%) of charitable expenditure relates to staff salaries, primarily to provide registered care and support services. 
Staff costs overall remained broadly similar to 2019 in line with the changing needs of our community.  All staff received a 
pay rise in the year in response to changes in minimum wage, competitive pay rates and inflation.   
 

The cost of raising funds increased to £254,000 in the year. This equates to 7% of total expenditure as compared to 5% in 
the previous year. 
 
Subsidiaries 
L J Welfare Enterprises Limited has not traded since 31 March 2018 and was formally dissolved 10 March 2020. 
 
Capital Expenditure 
During the year there were additions of £129,000 comprising of leasehold property, office equipment and fixture & fittings 
improvements to the MAZCC and the Learning Disability houses.  In addition, £32,000 was spent on IT equipment upgrades 
as part of a rolling replacement programme. 
 
Financial position as at 31 March 2020 
Net assets total £6m at the year-end compared to £6.6m in 2019. 
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Investment policy and performance 
 
The portfolio continues to perform reasonably in line with market conditions.  The portfolio fell in value in the year to 31 
March 2020 by 16% (previous year rise of 1.5%) largely due to a weak first three months of 2020 as the global pandemic 
took hold. In calendar year 2019, the portfolio returned +17.9%.  
 
Investments 
 

LJWB routinely invests surplus funds and legacies via our investment advisor (Rathbones).  We are reliant on a good 
dividend yield to finance our charitable work.  We have instructed Rathbones to operate an investment policy to achieve a 
return in reasonable excess of inflation over the long term, although this will not be achieved every year due to shorter 
term fluctuations in markets.  Investments have been selected prudently within the constraints of a medium risk 
portfolio.  This portfolio is appropriately diversified across different asset classes: fixed income, equities, and alternatives, 
via a mixture of direct investments and collective funds.  
 
LJWB Investment committee has responsibility for overseeing the investment portfolio and Investment Manager at 
Rathbones through a broadly defined investment brief.  In accordance with Charity Commission Guidelines and with an aim 
to be a socially responsible investor, LJWB continues to strive to invest in companies where the activities of the company 
are, on ethical grounds, consistent with the values and objectives of LJWB.  Guidance has been provided to our investment 
provider to be aware of ensuring that none of the companies directly invested in breach human rights including human 
rights, including child labour, poor labour practices, tobacco and military conflict or the profits thereof.  
 

The year to 31st March 2020 saw a good performance across asset classes for most of the period, but the end of the financial 
year falls just a few days after the low point for equity markets, amid lockdowns triggered by the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Therefore, the full year picture masks several divergent quarters. Equities enjoyed strong performance in the first three 
quarters, (to 31st December 2019), then fell back markedly in the first three months of 2020. The unprecedented nature of 
the pandemic came as a shock to markets and saw the FTSE All-Share (UK market) fall 25% in the three months to the 31st 
March 2020. Conversely, UK government bonds, some of which are held in the portfolio, did well over the same period, as 
investors fled to safer assets despite these investments offering little by way of income yield of capital growth prospects.  
 

The US market (S&P 500), continued to post the strongest returns of most major equity markets; as has been the case for 
some years now. Some of the largest stocks in the S&P 500, many known as ‘technology’ companies, were deemed to be 
relatively unaffected by the crisis, or indeed were beneficiaries of some of the trends accelerated by the pandemic. The 
portfolio benefitted from exposure to these areas through certain collective funds with high exposure. The UK market failed 
to keep pace with global markets, due to the continued overhang of the ongoing Brexit negotiations, although there should 
be more clarity on the future relationship between the EU and the UK by the end of 2020, which should remove some of 
this angst on behalf of investors. The UK market also has a bias and high weighting to cyclical sectors, including banks and 
commodity producers, which tend to perform poorly in times of economic distress.  Only a small portion of LJWB’s 
investments are exposed to the UK domestic economy, given most of the UK holdings are global businesses with most of 
their revenue derived from overseas, but which happen to be listed on the UK stock market.  
 

LJWB manages its investment risk by remaining a long-term investor and, on professional advice, continues to hold a mixed 
portfolio of equities, bonds, cash, and other investments designed to provide a level of stable income and the possibility of 
investment gains. The charity does not make use of derivatives and similar complex financial instruments as it takes the 
view that investments are held for their longer-term total return. Whilst uncomfortable, the charity can withstand 
temporary fluctuations in the capital value of the portfolio, which is necessary in order to maintain a reasonable exposure 
to equities and achieve the desired long-term returns.  
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The capital return on all investments, after sales, purchases, and fees, for 2019/2020 was -10.40% (capital return, as 
dividends are withdrawn and not reinvested). This compares with the FTSE All-Share Index return of -21.9% (and +2.2% in 
2018/19). 
 
Reserves and designated funds 
 

Reserves 
In line with Charity Commission guidance, the Trustees consider readily realisable (free) reserves to be the amount of 
reserves that are easily converted into cash should the need arise.  This therefore excludes restricted funds, designated 
funds, and any part of unrestricted funds not readily available for spending. 
 
Trustees are responsible for determining the correct level of free reserves required by LJWB based on a consideration of 
the needs of the business, the risk of potentially volatile donation and legacy income, and declines in contractual or grant 
income from statutory bodies.   
 
Reserves policy and position 
The reserves policy was reviewed in 2019 using a risk-based approach to the resilience of key income streams and the 
commitment levels of charitable activity expenditure. The reserves policy of LJWB states that we should aim to hold 12 
months of reserves which historically has been based on charitable activities expenditure.  As of 31 March 2020, this is 
approximately £3.7 million which is based on an average of the previous 2 years’ charitable activity expenditure.   
 
The total reserves of LJWB as at 31 March 2020 were £6million (2019: £6.6 million) comprising of unrestricted reserves of 
£3.7 million (2019: £4.3 million) and restricted reserves of £2.3 million (2019: £2.3 million). 
 
Of the unrestricted reserves, £230,000 relates to fixed assets, £320,000 relates to a designated fund to support capital 
renewal programme in our LD home provision and £467,000 relates to part of the LJHA Development loan.  Therefore, free 
reserves as at 31 March 2020 stood at £2.7 million (£3.4 million in 2019) which is below the target level.   
 
The Trustees continue to monitor the level of free reserves at regular intervals via the Finance & Business Continuity 
Committee. 
 
The Trustees, as the company directors, approve the Annual Report. 
 



 
 

 
LEEDS JEWISH WELFARE BOARD 
(A company limited by guarantee) 
  
 
 

TRUSTEES REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 

 

Page 29 
 

Trustees’ responsibilities statement 
 
The Trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustee’s Annual report and the financial statements in accordance with the 
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year, which give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including 
income and expenditure, of the charitable company for that period. In preparing these financial statements the Trustees 
are required to: 
 

 Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently 
 Observe methods of principles in the Charities SORP 2015 (FRS 102) 
 Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent  
 State whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements 
 Prepare financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable 

company will continue in operation.  
 

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the 
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention of fraud and other irregularities.  
 
In so far as the Trustees are aware: 
 

 There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware, and 
 The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit 

information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information. 
 

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the 
charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial 
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.  
 
Insurance for Trustees and Officers 
 
Insurance for Trustees and Officers against liabilities in relation to the company, as permitted by the Companies Act 2006, 
is maintained under a policy held by Leeds Jewish Welfare Board. 
 
 
Approved by order of the members of the board of Trustees and signed on their behalf by: 
 
 
 
……………………………………………….. 
Russell Manning 
Chair of the Board 
 
02 November 2020 

 
 

Russell Manning (Nov 9, 2020 12:08 GMT)

https://eu1.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAhlp_NH2TyVlQYz7aoAn7SY8PnfhD_TTi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF  LEEDS JEWISH WELFARE BOARD
 

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Leeds Jewish Welfare Board (the 'charity') for the year ended 31 March 2020
which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related
notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102
'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

 give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial
Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you
where:

 the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

 the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the charitable company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF  LEEDS JEWISH WELFARE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual report, other than the financial statements and our Auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

 the information given in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

 the Trustees' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

 adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

 certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' responsibilities statement, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Michael Jackson (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of
BHP LLP
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor
1st Floor
Mayesbrook House
Leeds
LS16 6QY
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LEEDS JEWISH WELFARE BOARD

(A company limited by guarantee)

  
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Unrestricted
funds
2020

Restricted
funds
2020

Total
funds
2020

Total
funds
2019

Note         £         £         £         £

Income from:

Donations and legacies 3 638,682 165,515 804,197 745,481 
Charitable activities 4 2,603,359 105,176 2,708,535 2,950,714 
Investments 5 103,079 - 103,079 112,061 

Total income 3,345,120 270,691 3,615,811 3,808,256

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 6 212,311 41,405 253,716 201,097 
Charitable activities 3,386,413 201,843 3,588,256 3,815,401 

Total expenditure 3,598,724 243,248 3,841,972 4,016,498

Net (losses)/gains on investments  12 (341,407) - (341,407) 210,009 

Net (expenditure)/income   (595,011) 27,443 (567,568) 1,767

Transfers between funds  17 (20,198) 20,198 - -
 

Net movement in funds   (615,209) 47,641 (567,568) 1,767

Reconciliation of funds:   

Total funds brought forward   4,334,252 2,280,096 6,614,348 6,612,581 
Net movement in funds   (615,209) 47,641 (567,568) 1,767 

Total funds carried forward   3,719,043 2,327,737 6,046,780 6,614,348

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 37 to 60 form part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

2020 2019
Note £ £

Fixed assets   

Intangible assets  10 42,985 46,698

Tangible assets  11 229,627 215,898

Investments  12 5,446,023 6,058,344

  5,718,635 6,320,940

Current assets   

Debtors  13 427,055 449,649

Cash at bank and in hand   163,451 136,061

  590,506 585,710

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year  14 (255,067) (281,484)

Net current assets    
 

335,439  
 

304,226

Total assets less current liabilities   6,054,074 6,625,166

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than
one year  15 (7,294) (10,818)

Net assets excluding pension asset   6,046,780 6,614,348

Total net assets   6,046,780 6,614,348

Charity funds   

Restricted funds  17 2,327,737 2,280,096

Unrestricted funds  17 3,719,043 4,334,252

Total funds   6,046,780 6,614,348
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BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

The Trustees acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Act with respect to accounting
records and preparation of financial statements.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

R J Manning
(Chair of Trustees)

J Mornin
(Trustee)

Date: 2 November 2020

The notes on pages 37 to 60 form part of these financial statements.
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LEEDS JEWISH WELFARE BOARD

(A company limited by guarantee)

  
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

2020 2019
Note £ £

Cash flows from operating activities   

Net cash used in operating activities  20 (214,280) (71,967)

Cash flows from investing activities   

Dividends, interests and rents from investments   103,079 112,061

Purchase of intangible assets   (4,187) -

Purchase of tangible fixed assets   (124,609) (149,575)

Proceeds from sale of investments   702,836 2,965,793

Purchase of investments   (381,146) (2,721,215)

Net cash provided by investing activities   295,973 207,064

Cash flows from financing activities   

Repayment of HP borrowing   (3,524) (3,525)

Net cash used in financing activities   (3,524) (3,525)

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year   
 

78,169
 

131,572

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   231,020 99,448

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  21 309,189 231,020

The notes on pages 37 to 60 form part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

1. General information

The principal activity of the charity during the year was that of the provision of a range of social care services and
activities. More information is included in the Trustees' report.

The charity is a company limited by guarantee which is incorporated and registered in England (no. 02923217) and
a registered charity (no.1041257). The address of the registered office is: 

Marjorie and Arnold Ziff Community Centre 
311 Stonegate Road 
Leeds 
LS17 GAZ

The company is limited by subscriber's guarantee and does not have a share capital. In the event of a winding up
the liability of each of the subscribers is limited to £1.

2. Accounting policies

  

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) - Accounting
and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their
accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(FRS 102) (issued October 2019), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland (FRS 102) and the Companies Act 2006.

Leeds Jewish Welfare Board meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102. Assets and liabilities
are initially recognised at historical cost or transaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant
accounting policy.

  

2.2 Going concern

The accounts have been prepared on the basis that the charity can continue to operate as a going concern.
The trustees have considered the impact of COVID-19 on the charity’s activities, beneficiaries, workforce and
supply chain, as well as the wider economy. Whilst it is not considered practical to accurately assess the
duration and extent of the disruption, the trustees are confident that they have in place plans to deal with
any financial losses that may arise. 

The trustees do however recognise that uncertainty exists surrounding the duration and impact of COVID-19
and hence there is inherent risk regarding the success and sustainability of these plans. This risk represents an
uncertainty which may cast doubt about the charity’s ability to continue as a going concern, however the
trustees have concluded that the charity remains a going concern whilst such viable options are available to
it. 

The charity has no overdraft facility or other external loans, the Charity's forecasts and projections show that
the Charity is able to operate for at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements.
After making enquiries the Trustees have a confident expectation that the Charity has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Charity therefore continues to adopt the
going concern basis of preparation for the accounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

2. Accounting policies (continued)

  

2.3 Income

All income is recognised once the charity has entitlement to the income, it is probable that the income will be
received and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably.

The recognition of income from legacies is dependent on establishing entitlement, the probability of receipt
and the ability to estimate with sufficient accuracy the amount receivable. Evidence of entitlement to a legacy
exists when the charity has sufficient evidence that a gift has been left to them (through knowledge of the
existence of a valid will and the death of the benefactor) and the executor is satisfied that the property in
question will not be required to satisfy claims in the estate. Receipt of a legacy must be recognised when it is
probable that it will be received and the fair value of the amount receivable, which will generally be the
expected cash amount to be distributed to the charity, can be reliably measured. 

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of entitlement of receipt, its recognition is deferred and
included in creditors as deferred income. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is
accrued.

  

2.4 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are
made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each
activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which
contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are
apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are
allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

Expenditure on raising funds includes all expenditure incurred by the charity to raise funds for its charitable
purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Expenditure on charitable activities is incurred on directly undertaking the activities which further the
charity's objectives, as well as any associated support costs.

All expenditure is inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

  

2.5 Government grants

Government grants relating to tangible fixed assets are treated as deferred income and released to the
Statement of financial activities over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned. Other grants are
credited to the Statement of financial activities as the related expenditure is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

2. Accounting policies (continued)

  

2.6 Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by
the charity; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the institution with whom the
funds are deposited.

 

2.7 Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets costing £600 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic benefits are
probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. After recognition, under the cost model, intangible assets are
measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on intangible assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a
straight-line basis over its expected useful life.

 The estimated useful lives are as follows:

 Amortisation is provided on the following basis:

Computer software - 33 %  & 50% straight line

 

2.8 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets costing £600 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic benefits are
probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Tangible fixed assets are initially recognised at cost. After recognition, under the cost model, tangible fixed
assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. All costs
incurred to bring a tangible fixed asset into its intended working condition should be included in the
measurement of cost.

Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of tangible fixed assets less their residual value over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Short-term leasehold property - 10% straight line
Motor vehicles - 20% - 33% straight line
Fixtures and fittings - 14%, 20%, 33% & 50% straight line
Office equipment - 20% straight line
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

  

2.9 Investments

Fixed asset investments are a form of financial instrument and are initially recognised at their transaction cost
and subsequently measured at fair value at the Balance sheet date, unless the value cannot be measured
reliably in which case it is measured at cost less impairment. Investment gains and losses, whether realised or
unrealised, are combined and presented as ‘Gains/(Losses) on investments’ in the Statement of financial
activities.

Investments held as fixed assets are shown at cost less provision for impairment.

  

2.10 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

  

2.11 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

2.12 Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement
can be estimated reliably.

Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the charity anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the
amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the
effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts,
discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised in the Statement of financial activities as a finance cost.

  

2.13 Financial instruments

The charity only has financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial
instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value and subsequently
measured at their settlement value with the exception of bank loans which are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

  

2.14 Finance leases and hire purchase

Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts and finance leases are capitalised as tangible fixed assets.
Assets acquired by finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.
Assets acquired by hire purchase are depreciated over their useful lives. Finance leases are those where
substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership are assumed by the charity. Obligations under such
agreements are included in creditors, net of the finance charge allocated to future periods. The finance
element of the rental payment is charged to the Statement of financial activities so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of charge on the net obligation outstanding in each period.

  

2.15 Pensions

The charity contributes to three pension schemes, two defined contribution pension schemes and a defined
benefit scheme. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the group in independently
administered funds. 

The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the group to the fund in respect of salaries
earned in the accounting period. 

The charity contributes to a defined benefit scheme operated by the National Health Service Superannuation
Scheme, which is only available to staff who have previously contributed to the scheme. The administration of
the scheme is dealt with by the National Health Service Pension agencies. Contributions to this scheme are
paid in respect of current service, and there is no liability to the charity in respect of past service.
Consequently, the pension cost charge represents contributions payable to scheme in respect of salaries
earned in the accounting period. 

  

2.16 Fund accounting

General funds are unrestricted funds which are available for use at the discretion of the Trustees in
furtherance of the general objectives of the charity and which have not been designated for other purposes.

Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for particular
purposes. The aim and use of each designated fund is set out in the notes to the financial statements.

Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions imposed by donors or
which have been raised by the charity for particular purposes. The costs of raising and administering such
funds are charged against the specific fund. The aim and use of each restricted fund is set out in the notes to
the financial statements.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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3. Income from donations and legacies

Unrestricted
funds
2020

Restricted
funds
2020

Total
funds
2020

Total
funds
2019

        £         £         £         £
  
Donations 594,671 165,515 760,186 715,064 
Legacies 44,011 - 44,011 20,748 
Funds received from LJ Welfare Enterprises

Limited - - - 9,669 

638,682 165,515 804,197 745,481

Total 2019 660,374 85,107 745,481

The charity benefits greatly from the involvement and enthusiastic support of its many volunteers, details of
which are given in our annual report. In accordance with FRS 102 and the Charities SORP (FRS 102), the economic
contribution of general volunteers is not recognised in the accounts. 

4. Income from charitable activities

Unrestricted
funds
2020

Restricted
funds
2020

Total
funds
2020

Total
funds
2019

        £         £         £         £

Community Support Services 129,248 55,608 184,856 333,183 
Community Engagement & Inclusion 62,152 12,500 74,652 69,573 
MAZCC Community Centre 23,540 37,068 60,608 58,360 
Moorcare 895,992 - 895,992 889,891 
Learning Disabilities Project 1,492,427 - 1,492,427 1,599,707 

2,603,359 105,176 2,708,535 2,950,714

Total 2019 2,800,587 150,127 2,950,714
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5. Investment income

Unrestricted
funds
2020

Restricted
funds
2020

Total
funds
2020

Total
funds
2019

        £         £         £         £

Income from UK listed investments 93,100 - 93,100 102,870 
Bank interest receivable 1,979 - 1,979 1,191 
Other interest receivable 8,000 - 8,000 8,000 

103,079 - 103,079 112,061

Total 2019 110,061 2,000 112,061

6. Expenditure on raising funds

Costs of raising voluntary income

Unrestricted
funds
2020

Restricted
funds
2020

Total
funds
2020

Total
funds
2019

        £         £         £         £

Costs of raising voluntary income 72,232 41,405 113,637 80,771 
Staff costs 136,218 - 136,218 116,042 
Depreciation 3,861 - 3,861 4,284 

212,311 41,405 253,716 201,097

Total 2019 194,576 6,521 201,097
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7. Analysis of expenditure by activities

Activities
undertaken

directly
2020

Support costs
2020

Total
funds
2020

Total
funds
2019

        £         £         £         £

Community Support Services 387,466 86,851 474,317 586,098 
Community Engagement & Inclusion 248,202 41,358 289,560 320,871 
MAZCC Community Centre 144,259 36,626 180,885 313,709 
Moorcare 828,896 154,322 983,218 1,106,771 
Learning Disabilities Project 1,275,848 189,198 1,465,046 1,339,912 
Holocaust Survivors Group 3,684 - 3,684 3,721 
L J Welfare Catering Costs 34,858 28,807 63,665 60,846 
Overheads - 127,881 127,881 83,473 

2,923,213 665,043 3,588,256 3,815,401

Total 2019 3,164,534 650,867 3,815,401
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7. Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Total
funds
2020

Total
funds
2019

        £         £

Staff costs 425,339 374,468 
Depreciation 16,834 8,672 
Telephone 14,133 11,464 
Sundry expenses 12,264 11,463 
IT support 45,581 55,033 
Legal and professional 22,058 37,756 
Share dealing costs 20,409 26,142 
Printing, stationary and postage 15,913 15,016 
Training and recruitment 15,119 20,348 
Insurance 8,570 9,600 
Bad debts 34,247 17,697 
Bank charges and interest 9,169 5,737 
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - (56) 
Governance costs 25,407 57,527 

665,043 650,867

Support costs are allocated to the costs of the various charitable activities using a percentage basis of full time
equivalent hours worked. 

8. Auditor's remuneration

2020 2019
£ £

Fees payable to the charity's auditor for the audit of the charity's annual accounts 7,300 7,200

Fees payable to the charity's auditor in respect of:

All non-audit services not included above 1,600 1,500
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9. Staff costs

2020 2019
£ £

Wages and salaries 2,312,240 2,374,691

Social security costs 185,147 180,998

Contribution to pension schemes 59,530 61,073

2,556,917 2,616,762

During the year redundancy and termination payments totalling £981 (2019: £15,704) were made to employees.
Payments totalling £981 (2019: £2,607) were outstanding at the balance sheet date.

The average number of persons employed by the charity during the year was as follows:

2020 2019
No. No.

Staff 143 151

The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:

2020 2019
No. No.

Staff 86 87

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

2020 2019
No. No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 1 -

In the band £80,001 - £90,000
1 1

The key management personnel of the charity comprise the Senior Leadership Team. The total employee benefits
of the key management personnel were £382,489 (2019: £380,920).
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10. Intangible assets

Software
£

Cost

At 1 April 2019 76,415

Additions 4,187

At 31 March 2020 80,602

Amortisation

At 1 April 2019 29,717

Charge for the year 7,900

At 31 March 2020 37,617

Net book value

At 31 March 2020 42,985

At 31 March 2019 46,698
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11. Tangible fixed assets

Short-term
leasehold
property

Motor
vehicles

Fixtures and
fittings

Office
equipment

Computer
equipment Total

£ £ £ £ £ £

Cost

At 1 April 2019 120,779 72,725 221,157 59,426 54,572 528,659

Additions 36,272 - 14,715 42,103 31,519 124,609

At 31 March 2020 157,051 72,725 235,872 101,529 86,091 653,268

Depreciation

At 1 April 2019 57,900 24,291 132,502 43,893 54,175 312,761

Charge for the year 42,698 14,869 21,528 29,453 2,332 110,880

At 31 March 2020 100,598 39,160 154,030 73,346 56,507 423,641

Net book value

At 31 March 2020 56,453 33,565 81,842 28,183 29,584 229,627

At 31 March 2019 62,879 48,434 88,655 15,533 397 215,898

The net book value of motor vehicles held under finance leases or hire purchase contracts, included above, is
£11,705 (2019: £14,274).
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12. Fixed asset investments

Listed securities
Shares in group

undertakings

Investments in
participating

interests Total
£ £ £ £

Market value

At 1 April 2019 3,808,832 2 2,249,509 6,058,343

Additions 381,146 - - 381,146

Disposals (702,836) (2) - (702,838)

Revaluations (341,407) - - (341,407)

Movement in cash 50,779 - - 50,779

At 31 March 2020 3,196,514 - 2,249,509 5,446,023

Net book value

At 31 March 2020 3,196,514 - 2,249,509 5,446,023

At 31 March 2019 3,808,832 2 2,249,509 6,058,343
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12. Fixed asset investments (continued)

Investments at fair value comprise:

Unrestricted
funds
2020

Restricted
funds
2020

Total
funds
2020

Total
funds
2019

        £         £         £         £

Listed investments

Non-UK Quoted fixed interest securities 340,528 106,260 446,788 410,074 
UK Quoted shares 931,721 83,610 1,015,331 1,375,730 
Non-UK Quoted shares 1,055,453 160,353 1,215,806 1,530,507 

2,327,702 350,223 2,677,925 3,316,311
Other investments  
UK Group undertakings - - - 2 
UK Fixed Interest 284,039 88,812 372,851 397,563 
UK cash held as part of portfolio 118,687 27,051 145,738 94,959 

402,726 115,863 518,589 492,524
Concessionary Loans  
LJHA Development loans 466,605 1,782,904 2,249,509 2,249,509 

3,197,033 2,248,990 5,446,023 6,058,344

Total 2019 3,718,630 2,339,714 6,058,344
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12. Fixed assets investments (continued)

All investments are carried at their fair value. Investment in equities and fixed interest securities are all traded in
quoted public markets, primarily the London Stock Exchange. Holdings in common investments fund unit trusts
and open-ended investment companies are at the bid price. Asset sales and purchases are recognised at the date
of trade at cost (that is their transaction value).

The significance of financial instruments to the ongoing financial sustainability if the charity is considered in the
financial review and investment policy and performance sections of Trustees’ Annual Report.

The Charity routinely invests fund with third parties through the regular investment of surplus funds and legacies
and is partially reliant on dividend yield to finance its work. Our investment advisors (Rathbone Investment
Management Ltd) are instructed to invest to maximise the returns from a set of investments that have been
selected prudently within the constraints of a medium risk portfolio with no minimum of low risk investment. The
portfolio is well diversified across different asset classes: fixed income, equities, equity managed funds and
alternatives with the main exposure being to investments in the leading advanced industrial economies with a
history of paying dividends.

The investment brief is broadly defined but as socially responsible investors and in accordance with Charity
Commission guidelines, LWJB will strive to invest in companies where the activities of the company are, on ethical
grounds, consistent with the values and objectives of :LJWB and achieve a positive social impact. Although there
are no explicit restrictions or areas of activity, the ethical criteria prohibit investment in activities that breach
human rights, including child labour, poor labour practices and military conflict or the profits thereof.

In the final weeks of the financial year to the 31st March, the global economy suffered an unprecedented shock
following the outbreak of COVID-19. Investor concerns were initially focused on China, but as the virus spread
across continents it became clear that the virus would have much broader consequences than first thought. Share
prices around the world suffered large falls over fears that the pandemic would cause a global recession, bringing
an end to the 10-year bull market run. The combined portfolios were not immune, and ended the financial year
down -7.6% in total return terms. This followed a strong period of performance in 2019. Indeed all the pain was
incurred in the last three months of the financial year (the first three months of 2020), over which time the UK
market fall some 25% and the portfolios -15%.

The combined portfolios remain majority invested in equities (c.70% at the financial year end), in order to generate
above-inflation growth over the long-term, by way of both capital and income returns.

The charity manages its investment risk by remaining a long-term investor and, on professional advice, continues
to hold a mixed portfolio of equities, bonds, cash and other investments designed to provide a level of stable
income and possibility of investments gains. The charity does not make use of derivatives and similar complex
financial instruments as it takes the view that investments are held for their longer term yield total return and
historic studies of quoted financial instruments have shown that volatility in any particular 5 year period will
normally be corrected.
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12. Fixed asset investments (continued)

The loan referred to above has been assigned to the company, is secured by a first charge on the property and
bears interest at commercial rates.  It is repayable on 14 months’ written notice by the company. The company has
discretion to postpone any capital payment and waive all or part of any interest payment.  Under this discretion,
the company has postponed all capital payments and waived all interest payments in excess of the amounts
appearing.

UK group undertakings
The company held two issued ordinary shares (100%) of a trading company incorporated in England and Wales, L J
Welfare Enterprises Limited.  L J Welfare Enterprises Limited has not traded in the current or previous year and was
disolved on the 10 March 2020.  

Investment management costs incurred during the year totalled £27,322 (2019: £26,142).

13. Debtors

2020 2019
£ £

Trade debtors 289,278 320,296

Other debtors 8,554 9,912

Prepayments and accrued income 129,223 119,441

427,055 449,649

14. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2020 2019
£ £

Trade creditors 55,620 88,981

Other taxation and social security 46,414 45,003

Obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts 3,524 3,524

Other creditors 16,569 6,724

Accruals and deferred income 132,940 137,252

255,067 281,484
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15. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2020 2019
£ £

Net obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts 7,294 10,818

16. Financial instruments

All financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost.
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17. Statement of funds

Statement of funds - current year

Balance at 1
April 2019

£
Income

£
Expenditure

£

Transfers
in/out

£

Gains/
(Losses)

£

Balance at 31
March 2020

£
Unrestricted

funds

Designated funds

New kitchen and
decoration 240,000 79,992 - - - 319,992

 

General funds

General Funds 4,094,252 3,265,128 (3,598,724) (20,198) (341,407) 3,399,051
 

Total Unrestricted
funds 4,334,252 3,345,120 (3,598,724) (20,198) (341,407) 3,719,043

Restricted funds

Learning
Disabilities 209,709 11,264 (3,534) - - 217,439 

Community
Engagement and
Inclusion 1,826,471 90,661 (88,260) 10,859 - 1,839,731 

Community
Support Services 241,457 168,766 (151,454) 9,339 - 268,108 

Head Office 2,459 - - - - 2,459 

2,280,096 270,691 (243,248) 20,198 - 2,327,737

Total of funds 6,614,348 3,615,811 (3,841,972) - (341,407) 6,046,780
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17. Statement of funds (continued)

Statement of funds - prior year

Balance at
1 April 2018

£
Income

£
Expenditure

£

Transfers
in/out

£

Gains/
(Losses)

£

Balance at
31 March

2019
£

Unrestricted
funds

Designated funds

New kitchen and
decoration 80,000 - - 160,000 - 240,000

 

General funds

General Funds 3,973,696 3,571,022 (3,500,475) (160,000) 210,009 4,094,252
 

Total Unrestricted
funds 4,053,696 3,571,022 (3,500,475) - 210,009 4,334,252

Restricted funds

Learning
Disabilities 215,898 571 (6,760) - - 209,709 

Community
Engagement and
Inclusion 1,888,927 31,392 (93,848) - - 1,826,471 

Community
Support Services 452,682 203,271 (414,496) - - 241,457 

Head Office 1,378 2,000 (919) - - 2,459 

2,558,885 237,234 (516,023) - - 2,280,096

Total of funds 6,612,581 3,808,256 (4,016,498) - 210,009 6,614,348
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17. Statement of funds (continued)

Designated funds
Kitchen and decoration - An amount of £319,992 has been designated for the capital expenditure required for the
Lynda Cohen and Lily Thompson homes.  

Restricted funds
Learning Disabilities Project - Our three residential care homes for adults with learning disabilities – Lily Thompson,
Lynda Cohen and Montague Burton are the only Jewish residential homes for people with learning disabilities in
Leeds.  Registered and inspected by Leeds City Council and the Care Quality Commission each Kosher home is
maintained to a very high standard.

Community Support Services and Community Engagement & Inclusion - The Community Engagement and
Community Support Services work co productively to enhance the wellbeing of the community.  The services cross
refer to ensure a holistic, person centred and joined up approach to meet the ever-changing needs of the
community, with the central aim of promoting choice, greater control, independence and reducing social isolation.
This is delivered through activity programmes, social groups and one-one support for people with various needs.

Head office - Head Office is about supporting the continuing strategic planning and development of our community
services in providing registered care, community support, help advice activities and guidance for people of all ages.

 Fund transfers
Fund transfers of £20,198 are made up of restricted deferred income included in unrestricted funds in the prior
year.

18. Summary of funds

Summary of funds - current year

Balance at 1
April 2019

£
 

Income
£

 

Expenditure
£

 

Transfers
in/out

£
 

Gains/
(Losses)

£
 

Balance at 31
March 2020

£
 

Designated funds 240,000 79,992 - - - 319,992 
General funds 4,094,252 3,265,128 (3,598,724) (20,198) (341,407) 3,399,051 
Restricted funds 2,280,096 270,691 (243,248) 20,198 - 2,327,737 

6,614,348 3,615,811 (3,841,972) - (341,407) 6,046,780
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18. Summary of funds (continued)

Summary of funds - prior year

Balance at
1 April 2018

£
 

Income
£

 

Expenditure
£

 

Transfers
in/out

£
 

Gains/
(Losses)

£
 

Balance at
31 March

2019
£

 
Designated funds 80,000 - - 160,000 - 240,000 
General funds 3,973,696 3,571,022 (3,500,475) (160,000) 210,009 4,094,252 
Restricted funds 2,558,885 237,234 (516,023) - - 2,280,096 

6,612,581 3,808,256 (4,016,498) - 210,009 6,614,348

19. Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current period

Unrestricted
funds
2020

Restricted
funds
2020

Total
funds
2020

        £         £         £

Tangible fixed assets 193,261 36,366 229,627

Intangible fixed assets 42,985 - 42,985

Fixed asset investments 3,197,033 2,248,990 5,446,023

Current assets 548,125 42,381 590,506

Creditors due within one year (255,067) - (255,067)

Creditors due in more than one year (7,294) - (7,294)

Total 3,719,043 2,327,737 6,046,780
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19. Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior period

Unrestricted
funds
2019

Restricted
funds
2019

Total
funds
2019

        £         £         £

Tangible fixed assets 169,817 46,081 215,898

Intangible fixed assets 46,698 - 46,698

Fixed asset investments 3,718,630 2,339,714 6,058,344

Current assets 585,710 - 585,710

Creditors due within one year (175,785) (105,699) (281,484)

Creditors due in more than one year (10,818) - (10,818)

Total 4,334,252 2,280,096 6,614,348

20. Reconciliation of net movement in funds to net cash flow from operating activities

2020 2019
£ £

Net income/expenditure for the period (as per Statement of Financial Activities) (567,568) 1,767

Adjustments for:

Depreciation charges 110,880 62,568

Amortisation charges 7,900 -

Gains/(losses) on investments 341,407 (210,009)

Dividends, interests and rents from investments (103,079) (112,061)

Loss on the sale of fixed assets - 193

Decrease in debtors 22,659 178,700

Increase/(decrease) in creditors (26,479) 6,875

Net cash used in operating activities (214,280) (71,967)
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21. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019
£ £

Cash in hand 163,451 136,061

Cash in investments 145,738 94,959

Total cash and cash equivalents 309,189 231,020

22. Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1 April
2019 Cash flows

At 31 March
2020

£
£ £

Cash at bank and in hand 136,061 27,390 163,451

Finance leases (14,342) 3,524 (10,818)

121,719 30,914 152,633

23. Pension commitments

The charity contributes to three pension schemes, a defined contribution pension scheme, a defined benefit
scheme operated by the National Health Service and the National Employment Savings Trust (NEST) government
scheme.

The defined contribution pension schemes assets are held separately from those of the group in an independently
administered fund.  The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the charity to the fund and
amounted to £25,175 (2019: £31,915). No contributions were payable to this fund at the year end (2019: £nil).

The defined benefit scheme is operated by the National Health Service Superannuation Scheme, which is only
available to staff who have previously contributed to the scheme. The administration of the scheme is dealt with
by the National Health Service Pension agencies. Contributions to this scheme are paid in respect of current
service, and there is no liability to the charity in respect of past service.  The pension cost charge payable to this
scheme during the year was £2,798 (2019: £3,265). No contributions were payable to this fund at the year end
(2019: £349).

The National Employment Savings Trust (NEST) government scheme is a defined contribution scheme.  The pension
cost charge represents contributions payable by the charilty to the fund and amounted to £31,557 (2019: £25,893).
No contributions were payable to this fund at the year end  (2019: £3,759).
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24. Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2020 the charity had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases as follows:

2020 2019
£ £

Not later than 1 year 23,210 23,676

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 6,478 29,958

29,688 53,634

25. Related party transactions

The charity has a close working relationship with Leeds Jewish Housing Association (the “Association”).  Although
the organisation is run autonomously, the directors consider that the Association is a related party of the
company.

Certain of the Association’s supported housing stock are managed by the charity. Any surpluses arising from the
management of such accommodation are retained by the charity and any deficits are borne by it.

During the year the Charity has received £68,093 from the Association and paid £83,662 as recharges for rent, gas,
electric etc on the managed housing stock. In addition the charity has paid the Association £6,765 as a 50%
contribution towards boiler upgrades.

During the year, aggregate donations by trustees to the charity without conditions amounted to £15,629 (2019:
£20,633).

During the year a donation of £32,500 (2019: £32,500) was received from Berrys Jewellers, a business controlled
by a trustee. This donation is restricted specifically to supporting the role of Children’s Activities Co-ordinator. 

During the year, a relative of a Trustee was employed by the Charity. Remuneration of this individual amounted to
£14,820 (2019: £5,265).

Leeds Jewish Welfare Board is a local community organisation that offers culturally appropriate care services and
support to any member of the local community who needs them.

The Trustees and their families can access these services on the same basis as the rest of the community and do
not receive any special treatment. The services that are provided are always based on the needs of the client and
are bespoke to that individual.
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